AGENDA

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

1. INVOCATION - VICE-MAYOR CANDICE N. JOHNSON

2. CALL TO ORDER - MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR

3. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM - MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - VICE-MAYOR CANDICE N. JOHNSON
5. 7:00 P.M. RECESS (if necessary)

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (requires motion and roll call vote)

7. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes of the work session and the regular meeting of November 10, 2025 (requires
motion and vote)

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. Public hearing to consider appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget in
order to amend departmental budgets due to unexpected expenditures during
the fiscal year

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Town Treasurer Angela Pennington

2. Public hearing to receive comments regarding the appropriations to the Fiscal Year
2025-26 budget

3. Consideration by the Town Council to adopt the appropriations to the Fiscal Year
2025-26 budget in order to amend departmental budgets due to unexpected
expenditures during the fiscal year (requires motion and roll call vote)

9. CITIZENS' PERIOD
10. PRESENTATIONS TO TOWN COUNCIL

A. Presentation by Melissa Parsons, Director of the Wythe County Emergency
Communications Center, to introduce herself and provide an update on the
Emergency Communications Center



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

|

C.

Presentation by Assistant Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Andrew
Austin to provide an update on the design and administration of the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Improvements Project

Presentation by Town Treasurer Angela Pennington for the Town of Wytheville
October Financial Statements

PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS
(CONTINUED)

A.

Consider scheduling a public hearing for the January 12, 2026, Town Council
meeting to receive comments regarding the request of Donna Leonard to amend
a Special Exception Permit approved by the Wytheville Town Council on June 9,
2025, to operate an Accounting and Tax Office on property located at 525 North
4th Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-1-22-7, in an R-2 Residential Zoning District

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton

2. Consideration by the Town Council to schedule a public hearing for the January 12,
2026, Town Council meeting to receive comments regarding the request of Donna
Leonard to amend a Special Exception Permit approved by the Wytheville Town
Council on June 9, 2025, to operate an Accounting and Tax Office on property located
at 525 North 4th Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-1-22-7, in an R-2 Residential Zoning
District (requires motion and vote)

REPORTS

A.

UPCOMING MEETINGS - CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK BRANDI JONES

OTHER BUSINESS

A.

B.

Council Member Time

Miscellaneous

CLOSED MEETING

A. Closed Meeting pursuant to 8 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Personnel - T.M., and § 2.2-3711
(A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel - W.L. (requires motion and vote)

B. Certification of Closed Meeting (requires motion and roll call vote)

ADJOURNMENT






MINUTES

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2025 AT 5:30 PM

CounNciL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

Persons Present:

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr., Interim Town Manager Sherry
Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief
Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Police Chief Joel Hash, Deputy Police Chief Bryan Bard,
Assistant Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, Police Officer Kyle Counts, Kenneth
Rowlett, Angela Porter, Others

Persons Absent:

None

RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED

A. Approval of Agenda

Mayor Taylor advised that the first item on the agenda is the Approval of Agenda,
and this required a motion and approval by the Council. She inquired if there was a
motion to approve the Work Session agenda.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins,
Vice-Mayor Johnson.

B. Discussion regarding a proposed Park Police Patrol Officer and a
Narcotics/Tracking Dog

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is discussion regarding a proposed
Park Police Patrol Officer and a Narcotics/Tracking Dog. She noted that Deputy
Police Chief Bryan Bard will give the Council additional information regarding this
topic. Deputy Chief Bard stated that the Town is flourishing, and the quality of life that
is offered is tied directly to the safety of the town's public spaces. He commented that
the primary patrol areas for the proposed Law Enforcement Park Police Patrol Officer
would include downtown Wytheville; Wytheville Recreation Center(s); Wytheville
Visitors Center; Withers Park; Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park; Truss Bridge Park; T-



Ball Field; Homestead Historical Park; Ager Park; and, Crystal Springs Park. Deputy
Chief Bard advised that patrols will be conducted on foot, in marked patrol vehicles,
by police bicycles and by ATV/4-Wheelers. He stated that due to increased traffic,
this necessitates a dedicated, visible law enforcement presence focused solely on
the unigue environment of the Town's parks, recreation areas and trails. Deputy
Chief Bard commented that the Law Enforcement Park Police Patrol Officer and a K9
Handler is more than just standard patrol, and that it is a commitment to community
policing and specialized safety. He noted that this officer will serve as a key liaison,
fostering relationships with the Recreation Department and the public. Deputy Chief
Bard advised that the visible presence of an officer dramatically enhances general
safety and acts as a powerful crime deterrent. He explained that they are requesting
this, at this time, so that the Police Department can hire an additional officer to send
to the Police Academy, which begins in January 2026, to fill the vacancy of the
currently employed patrol officer whose position this will fill. Deputy Chief Bard stated
that several of their officers have submitted letters of intent for this position because
they are very interested in it and would like to see it go forward. Councilwoman Atkins
inquired about the proposed K9 Handler position and if it is separate from the Park
Police Patrol Officer. Deputy Chief Bard noted that the K9 Handler position would be
assigned to the Park Police Patrol Officer. He commented that the K9 would be
familiar with the parks and would be seen more often. Deputy Chief Bard advised that
they are, primarily, asking for just one position. He stated that the one officer would
be able to work a five (5) day a week schedule, based on need and the time of year.
Deputy Chief Bard continued to discuss the potential work schedule of a Park Police
Patrol Officer. He stated that, if there are two (2) officers, they would work 12-hour,
alternating shifts so that the parks could be patrolled seven (7) days a week. Deputy
Chief Bard then reviewed the benefits of having two (2) Park Police Patrol Officers
with the Council. He explained that they would not need to request any additional
funds in the current budget for one Park Police Patrol Officer, due to vacancies within
the department. Deputy Chief Bard advised that the Park Police Patrol Officer
position would need to be added in the next Fiscal Year budget. Councilman Hand
inquired if the budget would be affected if they sent two (2) new officers to the Police
Academy, instead of just one. Deputy Chief Bard stated that they would need to
request a budget amendment for half a year's salary if they sent two (2) new officers
to the Police Academy. Councilwoman Pattison inquired if a Park Police Patrol
Officer could perform an adequate job without the assistance of a K9. Deputy Chief
Bard explained that the K9 would be used for Narcotics detection, and that Patrol
Officers would be calling on the K9 for traffic stops, etc. He noted that the K9 would
not be used in just the parks, it would just be assigned to the Park Police Patrol
Officer due to availability. Councilwoman Pattison inquired if surrounding counties are
using tracking/drug K9s on a regular basis. Deputy Chief Bard stated that he does
not believe they are used for tracking on a regular basis. Discussion was held
regarding the uses and benefits of having a Narcotics/Tracking K9 and the difficulty
they have experienced with trying to get an available K9 for situations in the past.
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired of Deputy Chief Bard as to whether the Police
Department has contacted the National Police Dog Foundation to see if the Town is
eligible to apply for grants. Deputy Chief Bard stated that they have not. Vice-Mayor
Johnson commented that the Foundation has highly trained veterinarians who
sometimes offer discounted services for Police K9s, and that they also give out grant



3.

funding. She noted that Richlands, Dickinson County and Pulaski County have
participated in the National Police Dog Foundation programs. Vice-Mayor Johnson
inquired if Deputy Chief Bard would consider applying for grants. Deputy Chief Bard
stated that he would definitely consider applying for grants. Vice-Mayor Johnson
inquired if the K9 would be trained only for narcotics detection, or would it be trained
for something else, as well. Deputy Chief Bard noted that the K9 would be trained for
narcotics detection and tracking. He commented that the Department’s primary goal
is to obtain a K9, free of charge. Deputy Chief Bard explained that many Law
Enforcement Agencies try to find dogs in shelters that are working, driven dogs. He
stated that the K9 and handler training would not cost anything, because the Town
would be partnering with the Virginia State Police and its K9 Training Program.
Deputy Chief Bard advised that the initial, up-front cost would be for the K9
transportation system, in-car kennel, home kennel, veterinarian care, food and the
association dues, which he thinks would cost around $25,000 for the first year. He
commented that getting a K9 would not take place in the current budget year,
because the new officers will first need to go through the Academy. Deputy Chief
Bard stated that this could be discussed for the next budget year in the Department’s
Capital Improvements Plan. Discussion was held regarding possible grant
opportunities the Town could apply for to assist with the K9 and moving forward with
the Law Enforcement Park Patrol Police Officer and a possible K9 Handler.

A motion was made by Councilman Hand, Jr. and seconded by Councilwoman
Pattison to approve moving forward to allow the Wytheville Police Department to
send an officer to the Academy in January 2026 with the intent that, in the end, this
officer is going to be a K9 Unit trained officer and not just a street patrol officer, but,
also a K9 Unit/Park Officer. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if this position would be a
K9 Handler and not a Park Police Officer. Councilman Hand stated that one person is
going to do the same thing. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if Deputy Chief Bard could
clarify the position. Chief Deputy Bard advised that the Park Patrol Officer will be
assigned the K9, however, the person that the department is hiring is not going to be
that person, because it is going to be one of the department’s seasoned officers. He
stated that five (5) of the department’s officers have stated that they would like to be
considered for the new position. Vice-Mayor Johnson reiterated what Chief Deputy
Bard is considering regarding a new hire and the new position. Discussion continued
regarding Deputy Chief Bard’s request. Vice-Mayor Johnson requested that the
motion be clarified. Councilman Hand advised that his motion was to approve moving
forward to allow the Wytheville Police Department to send an officer to the Academy
in January 2026 with the intent that, in the end, this officer is going to be a K9 Unit
trained officer and not just a street patrol officer, but, also a K9 Unit/Park Officer.
Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any further discussion on the motion. There being
none, the motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote:
Voting Yea: Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor,
Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (6:01

p.m.)



Sherry G. Corvin, Interim Town Manager

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk



MINUTES

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT:
None

OTHERS PRESENT:

Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town
Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Assistant Computer Operations
Manager Jeff Hooper, Police Chief Joel Hash, Police Officer Kyle Counts, Kenneth M.
Rowlett, Jody Richard, Becky Harrison, Jennifer Corvin, Zach Robinson, Robin Fasano,
Lynn Arnold, Stacy Terry, Charles Cornett, Trevor Rogers, Rick Rogers, Todd Mills,
Angela Porter, Tim Jones, Joe Upcauage, Tim Monahan, Gary Dean, Mike Scheneman,
Jim Cohen, Bret Cockram, Alyssa Robinson, Randal Hamm, Debra Dillow, Thomas Dillow,
Dwayne Murrell, Clayton Waller, Others

RE: CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.

RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present.

RE: STATEMENT FROM MAYOR BETH TAYLOR

Mayor Taylor advised that she has a statement she would like to make before starting the
meeting. She stated that the Town Council has been considering different ways to keep
citizens and employees safe. Mayor Taylor commented that the Council appreciated all the
comments expressed by the citizens about the firearms ordinance. She noted that, at the
last meeting, the Town Council listened to these concerns that were expressed and
removed the firearms ordinance from the agenda. Mayor Taylor stated that the ordinance
will not be considered again, and it will not be placed on another Town Council meeting
agenda during her tenure as Mayor of the Town of Wytheville.

RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilwoman Pattison.



RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented.

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor Taylor
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was
approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor
Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilman Hand,
Jr.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 27, 2025

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular
meeting of October 27, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the
consent agenda as presented.

Motion made by Councilman Hand, Jr., Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there
are several citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council
during Citizens' Period. She requested that citizens come to the podium and state his/her
name and address for the recording of the minutes to address the Council during Citizens'
Period. Mayor Taylor inquired if Mr. Joe Upcauage could please come to the podium to
address the Council.

Mr. Joe Upcauage was recognized and stated that he resides on Cinnamon Run in Wythe
County. He stated that he would like to address the Council regarding the Second
Amendment. Mr. Upcauage commented that he understands the proposed gun ordinance
will not be considered again. He explained that the Council has been discussing public
safety, however, taking away a citizen’s attempt to protect themself is not public safety. Mr.
Upcauage commented that he would like to say that he does not agree with this, and that it
should never have been considered. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Upcauage for his
comments.

Mr. Randal Hamm was recognized and stated that he resides on Wytheview Drive in
Wytheville. He stated that he spoke at the October 27, Town Council meeting addressing
the proposed gun ordinance. Mr. Hamm noted that he reviewed the Freedom of
Information Act (FOIA) request response that was shared by Mr. Stacy Terry, and that he
feels foolish for accepting the Town Council's responses to citizens’ inquiries. He reviewed
the FOIA request that was shared by Mr. Terry and continued to discuss his displeasure
with the Town Council's response to the proposed gun ordinance at the last Town Council
meeting. Mr. Hamm inquired of Councilman Hand if he reviewed the email that was sent



by Interim Town Manager Corvin on September 25, 2025, with the Town Manager Updates
that included the proposal of adding the gun ordinance to the October 27, meeting agenda.
Councilman Hand stated that he did not review the email, and that he never saw it until the
agenda was released and that he asked for it to be resent to him, at that time. Mr. Hamm
inquired of the Council regarding how each of them would reconcile their statements
following the FOIA request. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has not seen the FOIA
request that has been shared by Mr. Terry. She noted that she feels like everything she
said at the October 27, Town Council meeting was accurate, and that she did not lie.
Councilwoman Atkins explained that she read the Town Manager's Updates, and that she
thinks she should be able to discuss peoples' concerns. She advised that she did not see
the proposed gun ordinance in its entirety until the day the Council meeting packet was
released. Councilwoman Atkins commented that she is okay with listening to all sides of
peoples' concerns. She continued to explain that she did not know that the proposed gun
ordinance was going to be discussed at the October 27, Council meeting until she received
her Council meeting agenda and packet when it was released the Thursday before the
October 27, Council meeting. Councilwoman Atkins stated that, for the past few weeks,
she has been told to pick a side. She commented that she is not here to pick a side, and
that she was elected to listen to the community and hear their side. Councilwoman Atkins
advised that people are saying that the proposed gun ordinance was brought up by her.
She explained that she was not the person who brought this topic up to be placed on the
agenda, and that from her understanding, it was an inquiry from the Wytheville Farmers'
Market. Councilwoman Atkins noted that she agreed to the proposed gun ordinance being
placed on an agenda, because she wanted to listen to the Interim Town Manager’s and the
Town Attorney's input regarding the matter. She commented that she did not know at
which meeting the proposed gun ordinance would be discussed. Councilwoman Atkins
reiterated that everything she said at the October 27, Council meeting was accurate to the
best of her knowledge. Mr. Hamm inquired if any of the other Council members would like
to reconcile their statements. Mayor Taylor stated that in the beginning, the Town Council
was mainly interested in trying to keep citizens safe during events, etc. Mr. Hamm noted
that since the October 27, Council meeting and the release of the FOIA request, he now
has concerns regarding the Council's ability to be honest with citizens due to its written
and public statements. He explained that he would like to know how restricting firearms on
Town property is supposed to increase public safety. Mr. Hamm inquired of Vice-Mayor
Johnson regarding how she would like to reconcile her verbal statement about not
intentionally supporting infringing upon constituent’s Constitutional rights, and her written
statement in response to Interim Town Manager Corvin's request for feedback in the Town
Manager Updates. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she has no intention of infringing upon
anyone's rights. She advised that there was a concern from the Wytheville Farmers'
Market, and that her response was to that concern to keep people safe. Mr. Hamm
inquired if any other Council members would like to discuss why they withdrew their
support of the proposed gun ordinance once the agenda was released. Councilman Hand
stated that when he saw the email the first time, he sent an email to the rest of the Council
asking how this topic made it on the meeting agenda. Mr. Hamm inquired whether the
Council would like to share any more information that may provide additional transparency
or citizen understanding that was previously withheld. Mayor Taylor stated that she
believes the FOIA response request includes everything that was available to the citizens.
Mr. Hamm stated that the FOIA response states that some information was withheld due to
Attorney Client privileges. There being no further discussion, Mayor Taylor thanked Mr.
Hamm for his comments.



Mr. Kenneth Rowlett was recognized and stated that he resides on South 12th Street in
Wytheville. He noted that he would like to address the Council regarding the proposed gun
ordinance and the Wytheville Farmers' Market. Mr. Rowlett inquired of the Council about
what crime was committed at the Farmers' Market to suggest that Town citizens were at
risk of harm, which was then switched to the concern for Town parks, to begin the process
of developing the proposed gun ordinance. He then continued to express his concerns and
confusion regarding how the proposed gun ordinance was developed and why it was
developed. Police Chief Hash stated that the situation with the Town parks was his idea,
because the Police Department deals with a lot of homelessness and drug issues. He
noted that, however, he is not very familiar with the Farmers' Market situation. Mr. Rowlett
inquired about what happened at the Farmers' Market for the gun ordinance to be brought
up. Interim Town Manager Corvin explained that Staff received an email from the Farmer's
Market inquiring if the Town had an ordinance prohibiting firearms at the Farmers' Market.
She noted that Staff performed research regarding this request and developed an
ordinance that came directly from the Virginia State Code that covered everything from
events, Town parks, Town property, etc. Discussion continued regarding the situation at
the Wytheville Farmers' Market and how the proposed gun ordinance was developed in
hopes of providing additional public safety on Town property. Interim Town Manager
Corvin stated that she is not sure what happened at the Farmers' Market to prompt them to
ask the question about a gun ordinance. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Rowlett for his
comments.

Ms. Robin Fasano was recognized and stated that she resides on West Spiller Street in
Woytheville. She addressed the Council regarding the response to Mr. Stacy Terry's FOIA
request and what was included in the response. Ms. Fasano stated that she saw a
screenshot of the October 27, Town Council meeting agenda posted online, and that it
stated the proposed gun ordinance was going to be considered on first and final vote. She
explained that she feels like the proposed gun ordinance was being prepared between
September 25, and October 27. Councilwoman Atkins advised that she did see the
September 25, Town Manager Updates and the section regarding the idea of a proposed
gun ordinance, however, it did not include at which meeting this ordinance would be
reviewed and discussed. Ms. Fasano reviewed her concerns regarding the development of
the proposed gun ordinance, it being considered on first and final vote, the agenda
preparation process and Council member responses to the September 25, Town Manager
Updates. She then continued to discuss her concerns and displeasure with the Town
Council. Mayor Taylor thanked Ms. Fasano for her comments.

Mr. Stacy Terry was recognized and stated that he resides on Havens Road in Wytheville.
Mr. Terry stated that citizens want three things from their government and local officials
which are accountability, transparency and the truth. He noted that he had a great
conversation with Councilman Hand on October 24, and that Councilman Hand was
honest with him. Mr. Terry explained that he did not like how Interim Town Manager Corvin
was thrown under the bus. He commented that 20 minutes into the October 27, Council
meeting, Councilwoman Atkins advised that she was in the Closed Meetings where public
safety was discussed. Discussion was held regarding the Closed Meetings that were held
regarding security. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Terry for his comments.

Mr. Jim Cohen was recognized and stated that he resides on Cove Road in Wytheville. He
stated that he would like to address some of the things that he has witnessed while
attending the Council meetings over the last few years. Mr. Cohen explained that integrity



10.

11.

is very important for the Council to have. He noted that he is concerned by the instant
reaction to just one citizen who brings their complaints to the Council. Mr. Cohen advised
that the citizens need leaders to tell people "No" on certain things. He then continued to
discuss his concerns with the Council. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Cohen for his comments.

RE: RECESS

It was the consensus of the Council to take a brief recess. (6:53 p.m.)

RE: RECONVENE

It was the consensus of the Council to reconvene the meeting. (7:01 p.m.)

RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD (CONTINUED)

Councilwoman Atkins advised that she would like to make a statement regarding the
minutes from the October 27, 2025, Town Council meeting before moving forward with the
agenda. She advised that she would like the minutes to reflect that she was quoted stating
the following in the October 27, 2025, Town Council meeting minutes “she does not recall
firearms being discussed in any Closed Meeting.”

RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. RE: RESOLUTION — CDBG MONROE STREET HOUSING PRODUCTION
PROJECT

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider adopting a resolution
authorizing the Interim Town Manager/Town Manager to execute all appropriate
documents for the administration of the CDBG Monroe Street Housing Production
Project. She noted that Interim Town Manager Corvin will give the Council additional
information on this topic. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that this resolution
authorizes the Town Manager or Interim Town Manager to sign and submit all the
appropriate documents for the administration of the Monroe Street Housing
Production Project. Mayor Taylor proceeded to read the resolution, which is attached
and made part of the minutes. She inquired if there was a motion to adopt a
resolution authorizing the Interim Town Manager/Town Manager to execute all
appropriate documents for the administration of the CDBG Monroe Street Housing
Production Project.

Motion made by Councilman Hand, Jr., Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: REPORTS

A. RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Chief Deputy
Clerk Jones presented the upcoming meetings, as follows:



1. Due to the Veterans Day holiday, the Town of Wytheville Municipal Offices will be
closed, and all services will be curtailed on Tuesday, November 11, 2025.

2. The Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will meet on Wednesday,
November 12, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., at the Housing Authority Office.

3. The Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee will meet on Thursday, November 13,
2025, at 8:30 a.m., in Conference Room A.

4. The Wytheville Planning Commission will meet on Thursday, November 13, 2025,
at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

5. The Downtown Wytheville, Inc. (DTW) Board will meet on Monday, November 17,
2025, at 5:30 p.m., at the DTW office.

6. The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, November 20,
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Water Authority Plant in Austinville.

7. The District 11l Board will meet on Thursday, November 20, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., at
the Marion Office.

8. The Homestead Museum Advisory Board will meet on Friday, November 21, 2025,
at 10:00 a.m., at the Jackson House.

9. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on
Monday, November 24, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

12. RE: OTHER BUSINESS

A.

RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She
inquired if Councilman Hand had anything he would like to discuss during Council
Member Time. Councilman Hand stated that he did not have anything to discuss at
this time.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything she would like to
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she did not
have anything to discuss at this time.

Mayor Taylor stated that she would like to request removing the tabled Town Council
Rules of Procedure item, so that it can be added to another agenda. She inquired if
there was a motion to remove the tabled Town Council Rules of Procedure item, so
that it can be added to another agenda.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilman Hand, Jr.



Mayor Taylor presented the Community Buzz: Exciting Updates from the Wytheville
Town Council, as follows:

1. Congratulations to the Wytheville Community Center on being the official training
and fitness facility for the Blue Ridge Bobcats hockey team.

2. Thank you to all the citizens who attended the 2025 Trunk or Treat event - your
participation made it a great success with hundreds in attendance!

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she did not have
anything to discuss at this time.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would like to
extend her thanks to the Hometown Heroes and Veterans, since Veterans Day is
near. She noted that she would like to thank each and every Veteran that has served
our country. Vice-Mayor Johnson explained that she is grateful and thankful for our
Veterans.

13. RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting.
(7:12 p.m.)

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk






WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: November 24, 2025
Subject: Public Hearing — Budget Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2025-26
Budget
SUMMARY:

A public hearing has been scheduled to receive comments regarding budget appropriations to
the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget in order to amend departmental budgets due to unexpected
expenditures during the fiscal year. Town Treasurer Angela Pennington will review the budget
appropriations with the Council. After receiving comments from any concerned citizens, the

public hearing should be declared closed.

Recommended Action

Action to approve the budget appropriations to the Fiscal Year 2025-26 budget in order to amend
departmental budgets due to unexpected expenditures during the fiscal year will require a motion

and roll call vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\112425\Agenda Info - Public Hearing Budget Appropriations FY 25-26.docx



TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE

PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
FY 25-26
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 24, 2025

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE

USE RESERVES PURCHASE FIRE TRUCK $ - $ 709,085.00 | $§  709,085.00
USE RESERVES POLICE DEPARTMENT 911 SOFTWARE $ - $ 89,992.00 | $ 89,992.00
NEW LINE ITEM POINT OF CARE ULTRASOUND-WYTHE BLAND FOUNDATION GRANT (100% GRANT FUNDED) $ - $ 14,219.00 | $ 14,219.00
001-024000-0009 FIRE PROGRAMS GRANT-REPLACE PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (SCBA'S) $ 64,097.05 | $ 164,097.05 | $  100,000.00
001-032000-0005 FLOOD PREPAREDNESS FUNDS GRANT FOR STORMWATER SYSTEM (SPLIT 2 YEARS) (90% GRANT FUNDED) $ - $ 250,000.00 [ $  250,000.00
USE RESERVES MOUNTAIN EMPIRE AIRPORT- PURCHASE TRUCK $ - $ 4,900.00 | $ 4,900.00
USE RESERVES SHELTER FENCE $ - $ 8,200.00 | $ 8,200.00
USE RESERVES UNBUDGETED ADA CHAIR LIFT - RECREATION CENTER $ - $ 11,383.00 | $ 11,383.00
USE RESERVES KNIGHTSCOPE TOWERS $ - $ 48,870.00 | $ 48,870.00
USE RESERVES TOWN MANAGER'S SALARY OVERAGE (BUDGETED $135,565)(BALANCE $87,002.50) $ - $ 84,247.00 | $ 84,247.00
001-016020-0013 NORFOLK SOUTHERN GRANT FIRE & RESCUE $ 96.67 | $ 16,096.67 | $ 16,000.00
USE RESERVES ICE WARP EMAIL SYSTEM UPGRADE $ - $ 6,000.00 | $ 6,000.00

$ - |8 -

$ - [$ -

$ - |$ -
TOTAL $ 64,193.72 $ 1,407,089.72 $ 1,342,896.00

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE

001-033400-8213 PURCHASE FIRE TRUCK $ - $ 709,085.00 | $  709,085.00
001-031100-6219 POLICE DEPARTMENT 911 SOFTWARE $ 26,403.00 | $ 116,395.00 | $ 89,992.00
NEW LINE ITEM POINT OF CARE ULTRASOUND-WYTHE BLAND FOUNDATION GRANT (100% GRANT FUNDED) $ - $ 14,219.00 | $ 14,219.00
001-033400-8207 FIRE PROGRAMS GRANT-REPLACE PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (SCBA'S) $ 187,000.00 | $ 287,000.00 | $ 100,000.00
001-012600-8448 FLOOD PREPAREDNESS FUNDS GRANT FOR STORMWATER SYSTEM (SPLIT 2 YEARS) (90% GRANT FUNDED) $ - $ 250,000.00 [ $ 250,000.00
001-011010-5681 MOUNTAIN EMPIRE AIRPORT- PURCHASE TRUCK $ 30,000.00 | $ 34,900.00 | $ 4,900.00
001-071320-6248 SHELTER FENCE $ - $ 8,200.00 | $ 8,200.00
001-043700-8205 UNBUDGETED ADA CHAIR LIFT - RECREATION CENTER $ - $ 11,383.00 | $ 11,383.00
001-43600-8210 KNIGHTSCOPE TOWERS $ - $ 48,870.00 | $ 48,870.00
001-012110-1101 TOWN MANAGER SALARY OVERAGE (BUDGETED $135,565) (BALANCE $87,002.50) $ 135,565.00 | $ 219,812.00 | $ 84,247.00
001-033400-8208 NORFOLK SOUTHWERN GRANT - FIRE & RESCUE DEPT. $ 96.67 | $ 16,096.67 | $ 16,000.00
001-12820-6219 ICE WARP EMAIL SYSTEM UPGRADE $ 15,000.00 | $ 21,000.00 | $ 6,000.00

$ - |8 -

$ - |8 -

$ - [$ -
TOTAL| $ 394,064.67 | $ 1,736,960.67 | $ 1,342,896.00




WATER FUND REVENUES

ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE
USE RESERVES? WATER PLANT FILTER REHAB (ALL FOUR FILTERS) $ - 1% 63,500.00 [ $  63,500.00
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
TOTAL| $ = $ 63,500.00 | $§  63,500.00
WATER FUND APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE
004-045100-8201 WATER PLANT FILTER REHAB (ALL FOUR FILTERS) $  98,000.00 | $ 161,500.00 [ $  63,500.00
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
$ - |$ -
$ - |3 -
$ - |$ -
TOTAL| $  98,000.00 | $ 161,500.00 $  63,500.00
WASTEWATER FUND REVENUES
ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE
USE RESERVES? SEWER | & | PROJECT LEFTOVER FUNDS FROM FY 24-25 FOR GRAVITY SEWER LINE $ - |3 864,903.00 $864,903.00
USE RESERVES? WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADES (BEST ESTIMATE) $ N 1,000,000.00 |  $1,000,000.00
$ - |3 -
$ - |$ -
$ - |3 -
$ - |$ -
TOTAL $ - 3% 1,864,903.00  $1,864,903.00
WASTEWATER FUND APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT NAME CURRENT PROPOSED DIFFERENCE
002-046900-8435 SEWER | & | PROJECT LEFTOVER FUNDS FROM FY 24-25 FOR GRAVITY SEWER LINE $ - |3 864,903.00 $864,903.00
NEW LINE ITEM WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADES (BEST ESTIMATE) $ Rk 1,000,000.00 |  $1,000,000.00
$ - |3 -
$ - |$ -
$ - |3 -
$ - |$ -
TOTAL $ - 3% 1,864,903.00  $1,864,903.00

GRAND TOTAL 10/1/2025

$3,271,299.00




REVENUES & APPROPRATIONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/(DECREASE) PERCENTAGE CHANGE
REVENUES $26,635,728.00 $ 27,978,624.00 | $ 1,342,896.00
APPROPRIATIONS $26,635,728.00 $ 27,978,624.00 | $ 1,342,896.00 5.04%

REVENUES & APPROPRATIONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/(DECREASE) PERCENTAGE CHANGE
REVENUES $5,733,585.00 $ 5,797,085.00 | $ 63,500.00
APPROPRIATIONS $5,733,585.00 $ 5,797,085.00 | $ 63,500.00 1.11%

REVENUES & APPROPRATIONS CURRENT PROPOSED INCREASE/(DECREASE) PERCENTAGE CHANGE
REVENUES $5,900,018.00 $ 7,764,921.00 | $ 1,864,903.00

APPROPRIATIONS $5,900,018.00 $ 7,764,921.00 | $ 1,864,903.00 31.61%
TOTAL $ 3,271,299.00






WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

Meeting Date:

November 24, 2025

Subject:

Presentation — Melissa Parsons with the Wythe County
Emergency Communications Center

SUMMARY:

Melissa Parsons, Director of the Wythe County Emergency Communications Center will

introduce herself to the Council and provide an update4 on the Emergency Communications

Center.

Recommended Action

No action necessary by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\112425\Agenda Info - Parsons Presentation.docx



Melissa Parsons, Director



ABOUT ME

 Smyth County native, Bland resident

* 35 years in public safety — dispatcher, 911
Coordinator/Addressing, trainery, manager

* Dispatch Training Coordinator at Southwest VA LE
Academy



CENTER OVERVIEW

* Operates 24/1 as the hub for all public safety
communications in Wythe County, and the Town of
Wytheville

» Total of 21 positions - Staffed by Director, Operations
Manager, 14 certified telecommunicators, 3 of those in
training

 Training Requirements mandated by DC]JS, VSP, and
OEMS, as well as in-house policy and procedures


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Training for a new dispatcher takes a minimum of 6 months, but more likely to be 12 months


CORE
FUNCTIONS




Staffing, recruitment and
retention remain ongoing
challenges

High Stress Environment
Shift Work, Low Pay

Technology — ever
changing




Implementation of new CAD and
RMS software

Procurement of new dispatch
console furniture

Seeking grant opportunities for
future growth and resiliency

Strengthen relationships with all
stakeholders

Launched employee career
progression program

Revamped the webpage of the
Wythe County website




Pay increase each
fiscal year

Support Employee
Wellness (Mentally and
Physically)

Hire/Promote shift
supervisors and full-time
Training Coordinator

Expand public outreach
and awareness of 911
(back to the basics




* The WCECC remains a cornerstone of Wythe County’s
public safety system

 Through innovation, recruitment, training, and technology,
the center continues to deliver dependable emergency
communication sexrvices

 With council and board support, the WCECC will advance
its mission to protect the lives and property of town and
county residents and the motoring public






WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

November 24, 2025

Subject:

Presentation — Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements
Project

SUMMARY:

Andrew Austin, Assistant Director of Public Utilities and Engineering, will attend the meeting to

make a presentation to the Council to provide an update on the design and administration of the

Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project. Please find attached information that

Assistant Director Austin will review with the Town Council regarding a loan from the Virginia

Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund that could help assist with the required improvements at the

Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Recommended Action

No action required by the Town Council at this time.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\112425\Agenda Info - Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project.docx




Commonwealth of Virginia
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

www.deq.virginia.gov
Stefanie K. Taillon Michael S. Rolband, PE, PWD, PWS Emeritus
Secretary of Natural and Historic Resources Director

September 30, 2025

Andrew Austin
Town of Wytheville
Transmitted Electronically: andrew.austin@wytheville.org

Re: Virginia Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund Program
FY 2026 — Town of Wytheville
Wytheville WWTP
Financial Assistance Tentative Approval

Dear Mr. Andrew Austin:

By memo dated September 29, 2025, the Director of the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
tentatively approved the Wytheville WWTP project for Fiscal Year (FY) 2026 loan assistance from the
Virginia Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund at an amount of $24,469,000.00. The approval is subject to receipt
of public review/comment and final authorization from the State Water Control Board (Board). A separate
public meeting will not be held, but written comments and recommendations regarding the Intended Use Plan
and subsequent Project Priority List will be accepted until Friday, October 31, 2025.

Additionally, The Board will meet on November 18, 2025 to authorize loan rates, terms, and conditions for
selected projects. Board authorization will be subject to receipt of a favorable financial capability analysis
report and supporting recommendation from Virginia Resources Authority.

Should you have any questions regarding information provided in this correspondence, please feel free to
contact me at (804) 914-3729 or meghan.mayfield@deq.virginia.gov.

Sincerely,
s %

Meghan M. Mayfield, Director

Clean Water Financing & Training Programs
Central Office

1111 East Main Street

Richmond, VA 23218

cc: Joseph Bergeron — Virginia Resources Authority
James Allen Cornett — DEQ/SWRO — Project Manager
James Moneymaker — DEQ/CO — Project Officer



Town of Wytheville Wastewater Treatment Facility
Preliminary Engineering Report
Summary of Opinions of Capital Construction Cost Costs - Phase 1

Table 5.1

*Immediate: (1year design+1year
to mid point construction)

Bid Date (5% inflation per year)

2025 Total
WWTP Upgrades Project $ 2,027
Equipment/Process Renewals based on age/condition $ -
Jetting/cleaning inverted siphon $ 16,000 [ $ 18,000
Headworks Building/Enclosure $ -
Alt D: Demolish existing structure and install canopy structure $ 169,000 || $ 186,000
Headworks Screening Equipment $ -
Alt A: Two new in-kind Parkson Aqua Guard screens $ 1,152,000 |[ $ 1,270,000
Headworks Aerated Grit Removal Equipment $ 2,690,000 || $ 2,966,000
||Plant drain pump station $ 382,000 |[ $ 421,000
Primary Clarifier Equipment, Valves, Tank Rehab (Trains 7 and 8 only) $ 2,284,000 || $ 2,518,000
Secondary Clarifier EqQuipment $ -
Alt B: Equipment Refurbishment (drives, sandblast/paint) $ 498,000 || $ 549,000
Chlorination and Dechlorination System $ -
Alt D: Renew the gas system with new dissolution equipment $ 210,000 || $ 232,000
Reaeration Diffuser Repairs $ -
Diffusers $ 110,000 || $ 121,000
Solids Thickening $ 3,125,000 || $ 3,445,000
New RDT in new thickening building $ -
Digester Cover Replacement $ 2,993,000 || $ 3,300,000
Digester Equipment $ -
Waste gas flare, recirculation pumps, transfer pumps $ 774,000 |[ $ 853,000
Electrical Switchgear $ 2,734,000 || $ 3,014,000
(Operational Improvements/Resilience $ -
SCADA System (Phase 1 = fiber network+2 process areas) $ 1,402,000 |[ $ 1,546,000
VPDES/Code Compliance/Safety/Energy Efficiency $ =
Aeration Blower and Control System $ 2,467,000 || $ 2,720,000
TOTAL $ 21,006,000 | $ 23,159,000




10-C



WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: November 24, 2025
Subject: Presentation — October 2025 Financial Statements
SUMMARY:

Town Treasurer Angela Pennington will review the October 2025 Financial Statements and

answer any questions from the Town Council.

Recommended Action

No action required by the Town Council at this time.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\112425\Agenda Info - Presentatiion - October Financial Statements.docx









































































